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371 PATRICIAN WAY 
 

PASADENA 
 

 
Style:  Spanish Colonial Revival 
 
Year of Completion:  1927 
 
Original Building Permit: #5696D, issued by the City of Pasadena on August 23, 1927 for a 
one-story, nine-room residence.  The house, to measure approximately 64 by 70 feet with a 
maximum height of 19 feet, would have a concrete foundation, wood-frame walls, a tile roof, 
two chimneys with a total of five flues, and floors of concrete, tile, and wood.  A total of 71 light 
fixtures were purchased from the Wilkinson-Scott Company. 
 
A copy of this permit is attached on page 20. 
 
Cost to Build:  $15,000—a typical cost for a house of this size at the time. 
 
Architect:    Webber, Staunton & Spaulding, Los Angeles.  The house was designed as  
Mr. Staunton’s personal residence.  Please see the attached materials about this design 
partnership on pages 10 through 17. 
 
Builder:  Houghton & Anderson, Los Angeles.    
 
First Owner:  William F. Staunton, Jr., a partner in the architectural firm of Webber, Staunton 
& Spaulding, who shared the house with his wife Mary B. Staunton and their two children.  
Mr. Staunton had purchased the vacant parcel from the Title Guarantee & Trust Company. 
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William Field Staunton, Jr., was born on August 25, 1893 in Tombstone, Arizona where his 
father was a well-known copper-mine manager.  The younger Staunton earned a B.A. in 
architecture from Cornell in 1916.  By 1917, he had relocated with his family to Los Angeles 
where they lived on South Harvard Blvd.  During that time he found work as a draftsman with 
the well-known architect Arthur Kelly.  He joined the firm of Webber and Spaulding in 1923.   
 
Mrs. Staunton was born Mary Bates Martin on March 5, 1899 in Berlin, Germany to American 
nationals.  Her brother worked in the American embassy. She was living in Berkeley, California 
and working as a secretary when she married her husband in February 1926.  They would have 
two children: William F. III (1926-2000) and Mary (born ca. 1930).  Mrs. Staunton was active in 
local groups, including the San Marino Women’s Club. 
 
William Staunton, Jr., was a member of the Allied Architects Association and the American 
Institute of Architects.  Following the breakup of Webber, Staunton & Spaulding, he established 
a private practice at 816 West Fifth Street in downtown Los Angeles.  He specialized in 
residential projects, including a home for Arthur T. MacDonald in Pasadena (1932), the 
residence of M. L. Gretchell at 1405 South Oakland in Pasadena (1937), and the Dr. C. G. 
Hartley house on Moraga Drive in Bel-Air (1939).  Mr. Staunton was active in the Los Angeles 
University Club, the Newport Harbor Yacht Club, and the Pacific Beach Club of Santa Monica.  
 
Mr. Staunton sold his Patrician Way home in 1940 and moved elsewhere in Pasadena.  
Directories identified him at that time as a “draftsman.”  During World War II, he worked for the 
Federal Housing Administration and, post-war, took on both design and contracting jobs in the 
private sector.  His entry in Who’s Who in California is attached on page 6. 
 
William Staunton died in Yucca Valley on November 28, 1977 at age 84.  No obituary could be 
found for him.  His wife had pre-deceased him—Mary Staunton passed away in Pasadena on 
March 6, 1969, age 69.  Her brief obituary from the Pasadena Star-News is attached on page 7.   
 
Other Building Permits:  Just before the permit for the house was issued, in July 1927, the 
construction of a 67-foot-long reinforced-concrete retaining wall was allowed, costing $1,000. 
 
In February 1965, fire damage to 400 square feet of the house was repaired at a cost of $2,000. 
W. J. Escherich, Jr., of San Marino was the contractor.   
 
Construction of a 3.5-foot-tall wall and gate along the street was permitted in March 1985.  The 
owner would serve as his own contractor for this job, valued at $1,000. 
 
Electrical service was upgraded to 200 amps in February 2015.   
 
Copies of some of these permits are attached on pages 21 through 23.   
 
(Note: Permits for very minor alterations, such as water heater replacement, are not included.  
Also not included are permits missing from the file or whose microfilmed or digital copies are 
indecipherable and not otherwise recorded or described in Assessor’s records.)    
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Assessor’s Records:  The Pasadena City Assessor first visited the property on January 12, 1928 
and recorded a newly-constructed single residence with a concrete foundation, walls of 
reinforced concrete, a gabled tiled roof, and plain trim.  Heat was provided by three fireplaces 
and a gas furnace.  There were thirteen plumbing fixtures.  Interior finishes were described as 
“special.”   
 
The Assessor estimated the square footage at 4,971.  The house contained two living rooms (one 
was probably a dining room), four bedrooms, three tiled bathrooms, a pantry, and a kitchen.  
There were also three basement areas: one at 6 by 44 feet, another at 14 by 20 feet, and a third at 
16 by 22 feet.  A central patio measured approximately 16 by 20 feet.  A garage, measuring 
approximately 22 by 32 feet, was attached to the house. 
 
The Los Angeles County Assessor currently estimates the square footage of the house at 3,846 
with five bedrooms and three bathrooms.   
 
Copies of the City Assessor’s building records are attached on pages 24 and 25. 
 
(Note: The Pasadena City Assessor’s Office ceased operations in 1974.  Their square footage 
totals often differed from those of the Los Angeles County Assessor’s Office, since they 
frequently included garages, terraces, patios, etc. in their computation.  It is advisable to rely on 
the County Assessor’s square footage figures since they are more up-to-date and consistent.)  
 
Other Owners and Residents:  The next owners of the property in 1941 were James Horace 
Kindel and his wife Philippina B. Kindel who shared the house with their sons James H., Jr., and 
Wallace M. Kindel.  The senior Mr. Kindel was the owner of a Dodge automobile dealership 
located at 294 West Colorado.  Mrs. Kindel was recorded as the sole owner of the Patrician Way 
property after the death of her husband in 1955. 
 
By 1956, Grant P. Holcomb, Jr., a radio and television newscaster, and his wife Jeanne P. 
Holcomb had become the owners.  Living with them were Grant III, Lynne, and Susan, all 
students.  Mr. Holcomb, a native of San Bernardino and a graduate of U.C., Berkeley, began his 
career in 1941 as a newsman for a radio station in Riverside.  He later moved to CBS Radio in 
San Francisco.  He became a newscaster for KNX Radio in Los Angeles in 1951, and the 
following year went to work for KNXT Television. He served as the station’s news director from 
1966 to 1971 and was appointed its Washington correspondent in 1973.  Mr. Holcomb died at 
age 60 in 1977.  An obituary and tribute published in the Los Angeles Times are attached on 
pages 8 and 9.   
 
Marylou Ingram, a physician and scientist, gained title in April 1972.  She was employed at the 
Huntington Medical Research Institute. 
 
Notes:  Catalogs of the Wilkinson-Scott Company, the vendors of the original electrical fixtures, 
can be found at the Pasadena Public Library. 
 
The Staunton house was featured in the November 1931 issue of California Arts & Architecture 
magazine.  The article considered the patio as being its “most interesting feature,” as it formed 
the heart of the house: “brick-paved, bordered by trees and plants, it is ready for manifold uses.”  
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Another feature was the “quaint corner fireplace in the owner’s bedroom.”  A copy of the article 
can be found on pages 18 and 19. 
 
Significance:  The Staunton house is potentially eligible for listing on a local inventory of 
significant properties due to its association with a known architect as his own home, its good 
state of preservation, and its contribution to the architectural and historical context of the 
Patrician Way neighborhood. 
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Sources: 
 Los Angeles County Assessor 
 Los Angeles Public Library 

City of Pasadena, Planning and Development Department (Design & Historic 
Preservation Section) 

 Pasadena Public Library 
 Pasadena Museum of History (Research Library and Archives) 
 
 Gebhard, David and Robert Winter.  An Architectural Guidebook to Los Angeles. 
  Salt Lake City, Gibbs-Smith, 2003. 
 McAlester, Virginia and Lee.  A Field Guide to American Houses.   
  New York, Knopf, 1984. 
 Who’s Who in California, 1928-29. 
  
 City Directories:  1927- 
 
 California Arts & Architecture:  November 1931 
 Los Angeles Times: December 27, 1977  
 Pasadena Star-News:  March 7, 1969 
   
 Internet Resources, including California Index, California Death Index,  

Gale Biography Master Index, Ancestry.com, and Historic Los Angeles Times 
Database. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Tim Gregory 
The Building Biographer 
400 East California Blvd., #3 
Pasadena, CA  91106-3763 
 626-792-7465 
timgregory@sbcglobal.net 
www.buildingbiographer.com   
 
Copyright  May 2015 
by Tim Gregory 
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WEBBER, STAUNTON & SPAULDING 
An Architectural Partnership 

 
The partnership of Walter Webber, Sumner Spaulding, and William F. Staunton during the 1920s 
in Los Angeles, produced a number of buildings that were diverse in both use and style.  
 
There is very little documentation available about the early professional life of Walter I. Webber.  
Born in August 1864 in Massachusetts, he eventually settled in Pasadena with his wife Maudilee.  
Some of his independent design works include the Japanese-styled Bernheimer residence in 
Hollywood and 476 Bradford Street in Pasadena (both 1913), a house at 684 Norwood Drive, 
Pasadena (1915), and the Stanley Apartments and Livingstone Hotel, which still stand at 86-92 
South Los Robles Avenue, Pasadena (1925-27). Webber evidently moved to Los Angeles shortly 
after 1920, forming a partnership with Sumner M. Spaulding the following year.   
 
Sumner Maurice Spaulding was a native of Ionia, Michigan, born there in June 1892.  After 
attending the University of Michigan for three years, he received a B. A. from M.I.T. in 1916. 
(Spaulding was to undertake further study in Europe between 1921 and 1926, and in Mexico 
during the early 1940s.)    After military service during World War I, Spaulding became an 
architectural draftsman in 1920, and secured his license to practice architecture in 1921.  
Webber, his senior by about eighteen years, probably had a great impact on his first formative 
years as an architect. Older architects, such as Webber, were well-schooled in the decorative 
styles of the Beaux Arts philosophy, and the earliest work of this firm reflects that mind-set.   
 
By 1923, Webber & Spaulding had taken on another partner, William Field Staunton, Jr., 
becoming known as Webber, Staunton & Spaulding.  (The architect Everett Radcliffe Harmon 
also seems to have been associated with the partners around this time.)  Staunton was born in 
August 1893 in Tombstone, Arizona where his father was a well-known copper-mine manager.  
By 1917, after graduating with a B.A. degree in architecture from Cornell, the younger Staunton 
had relocated to Los Angeles where he found work as a draftsman for the well-known architect 
Arthur Kelly before joining Webber & Spaulding.   
 
Webber, Staunton & Spaulding proved to be adept at designing all types of buildings, from 
theaters to schools, and residences of all sizes.  Perhaps one of their most well-known clients was 
silent-film star Harold Lloyd for whom they designed the massive Beverly Hills home known as 
“Greenacres.”  It cost an astounding $500,000 to build in 1927!  William Wrigley must have 
admired their work as well, for he commissioned the partners to design a number of buildings on 
Catalina Island which he then owned.  Their most famous landmark on the Island is the Casino, 
designed, according to Gebhard and Winter, in a “strange mixture of Spanish, Moorish and Art 
Deco Moderne” in 1928.  
 
Among the other documented works of Webber, Staunton & Spaulding:   
 
  St. Lawrence Parish School, Los Angeles (1923) 
  Leo Youngworth residence, Baldwin Hills--in a Tuscan style (1923) 
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Malaga Cove Plaza, Palos Verdes—in association with the Olmsted brothers—      
four such centers were planned, but this was the only one built (1924) 

E. W. Murphy residence, Los Angeles (1924) 
  W. R. Hervey residence, Newport Beach (1924) 
  Plans for a high school in Avalon, Catalina Island (1924) 
  Reavis Hughes residence, 1122 Lagunita, Pasadena (1924) 

 Theater and shop building in Avalon--thought to be the location of the current                          
   post office (1924) 

  Lincoln High School, Los Angeles (1924) 
  Aubrey Wardman residence, Whittier (ca. 1925) 

G. Bury residence, 2304 Hollyridge, Hollywood--winner of a local award from 
the American Institute of Architects (1925) 

  P. G. White residence, 4th & June Streets, Los Angeles (1927) 
  Residence for firm partner William F. Staunton, Jr., and his wife Mary,  
   371 Patrician Way, Pasadena (1927) 
  Sigma Tau Fraternity, U.S.C. (1928) 
  Margaret C. Proctor residence, 526 South Hudson, Los Angeles (1928) 
  Frary Hall, Pomona College, Claremont (1929) 
  Y.W.C.A., 435 South Boyle, Los Angeles (1931) 
 
In 1925, the Pacific Coast Architect magazine characterized the partnership’s work as 
“restrained, thoughtful, and yet far from being commonplace or stereotyped.” They were praised 
for avoiding the “picturesque and bizarre” that was all the rage in the age of the flapper.  Webber 
and his associates carefully studied all the conditions and requirements of the site and the client 
and expressed them in a direct and simple structure.  Emphasizing proportion, balance, and 
solidity, their houses still managed a good use of the texture and color of the building materials 
that were available.   The sense of scale, in mass and detail, was consistent throughout.  The 
firm’s residential interiors were described as dignified and restful, but were criticized for being a 
bit lacking in domestic warmth.   
 
Walter Webber appears to have retired in the early 1930s.  Upon his death in June 1943, at the 
age of 78, only a brief burial notice was published in the Los Angeles Times.   
 
Sumner Spaulding seems to have left a more lasting impression on his profession, especially 
when he became independent of the partnership.  He became proficient in the design of many 
types of buildings, including country estates, housing projects, museums, hospitals, schools, and 
colleges.  After World War II, Spaulding formed an association with another architect, John Rex, 
and a structural engineer C. Gordon De Swarte, both of Los Angeles.  Spaulding was associated 
with John C. Austin in planning the Los Angeles Municipal Airport in 1940-41 and was also 
chairman of a committee of the American Institute of Architects (A.I.A.) that designed the Los 
Angeles Civic Center between 1937 and 1943.  Other works include the design of the men’s 
campus of Pomona College, a theater and shop building at Claremont (1939), the American 
National Red Cross Building in Los Angeles (1200 South Vermont, 1939), the school of 
medicine at the College of Medical Evangelists, and Westchester High School (1952).  
Spaulding is also remembered for his redevelopment plans for a number of American cities.   
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However, his interest in residential design continued throughout his career.  Among the homes 
he designed: 
 
   Martin Pollard residence, North Hollywood (ca. 1935) 
   Millea residence, Santa Monica (1939) 
   H. S. Anderson residence, Bel-Air (1940) 
   Behrendt residence, Los Angeles (1941) 
   Case Study House #2 (1942) 
   Neff residence, Los Angeles (1947)    
 
Active in his profession, Spaulding was named a Fellow of the A.I.A., serving as president of its 
Southern California Chapter and chairing its Slum Clearance and Urban Redevelopment 
Committee.  He lectured in architecture at the University of Southern California and at Scripps 
College and maintained memberships in the International Institute of Los Angeles, the 
Community Welfare Federation of Los Angeles, the American Society of Planning Officials, the 
National Housing Conference, and the California Housing and Planning Association (of which 
he was a board member).   He also wrote many articles for professional publications dealing with 
such subjects as drafting skills and the design of apartment houses, schools, restaurants and other 
commercial and showroom spaces.  He lived in Beverly Hills with his wife Pauline (Snyder) 
Spaulding (whom he had married in 1918) and their daughter Rosemary.   
 
Obituaries published upon Sumner Spaulding’s death in April 1952, at the age of 59, honored 
him as a “nationally known architect and city planner.”    
 
William Staunton, Jr. was a member of the Allied Architects Association and the A.I.A.  
Following the breakup of Webber, Staunton & Spaulding, he went on to design his own 
residential projects, including a home for Arthur T. MacDonald in Pasadena (1932), the 
residence of M. L. Gretchell at 1405 South Oakland in Pasadena (1937), and the Dr. C. G. 
Hartley house on Moraga Drive in Bel-Air (1939).  During the 1940s, local directories identified 
him as a “draftsman.” During World War II, he worked for the Federal Housing Administration 
and, post-war, took on both design and contracting jobs in the private sector.   He died in Yucca 
Valley in November 1977 at age 84.   No obituary could be found for him. 
 
Sources: 
Gebhard, David and Robert Winter.  An Architectural Guidebook to Los Angeles.  

Salt Lake City, Gibbs-Smith, 2003. 
Who Was Who in America, Vol. 3 
Who’s Who in California, 1928-29 
Architectural Record: May 1952 
Los Angeles Times: April 11, 1952 
New York Times: April 11, 1952 
Pacific Coast Architect: July 1925 
 
Copyright 2001 by Tim Gregory, The Building Biographer; revised 2015 
400 East California Blvd., #3 
Pasadena, CA  91106-3763 
626-792-7465 
timgregory@sbcglobal.net 
www.buildingbiographer.com   
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464 NORTH JUNE STREET 
 

LOS ANGELES 
 

 
Original Style:  Italian Revival (altered) 
 
Year of Completion:  1928 
 
Original Building Permit:  #9522, issued by the City of Los Angeles on April 2, 1928 for a 
two-story, twelve-room residence and garage.  The house, to measure approximately 46 by 126 
feet with a maximum height of 26 feet, would have a concrete foundation, wood-frame walls 
covered in plaster, a tiled roof, and a brick chimney.   
 
A copy of this permit is attached on pages 17 and 18. 
 
Cost to Build: $20,000—a larger-than-average cost for a new house at the time. 
 
Designer and Builder:  Chisholm, Fortine & Meikle, Los Angeles.  Additional information on 
this talented but short-lived firm is attached on pages 6 through 10. 
 
First Owner:  Marvel W. Chessman, who shared the house with her husband Frank N. 
Chessman, a physician, their daughter, and a live-in maid.   Mrs. Chessman had purchased the 
vacant parcel from Archibald W. Edes.   
 
Mrs. Chessman was born Marvel DeWitt White in Lyons, Kansas on October 20, 1886.  Her 
father was a fireman.  After attending St. Mary’s boarding school in Knox, Illinois, she lived 
with a cousin in French Lick, Indiana.  She married her husband in Seattle in June 1909.  They 
would have one child: Jane Newhall Chessman (1920-2000).   
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Dr. Frank Newhall Chessman was born in Helena, Montana on May 5, 1877.  His father William 
was a miner who had participated in the California Gold Rush and relocated to Montana in 1864.  
Dr. Chessman attended St. Paul’s School in Concord, New Hampshire and graduated from 
Harvard in 1900.  He earned his M.D. degree from the College of Physicians and Surgeons in 
New York City in 1904, specializing in gynecology and obstetrics.  He first worked at that city’s 
St. Luke’s Hospital, leaving to become associated with the Sloane Hospital for Women in 1907.  
By 1913 he had established a private practice in Seattle.  Around 1925, he and his family moved 
to Los Angeles where Dr. Chessman was appointed to the governing committee of the Gorgas 
Memorial Institute, an organization dedicated to prolonging life and preventing illness.    
 
Dr. and Mrs. Chessman had parted company by 1933.  Dr. Chessman and his daughter went to 
live with his sister elsewhere in Los Angeles while his ex-wife remained at the June Street house.  
In 1934, she announced her engagement to Marshall Rusk (1882-1963), a well-known singer and 
voice teacher who had trained and worked in Paris for the past thirteen years.  He moved into the 
house and set up a vocal studio there.  Name on the property’s title changed to Marvel W. Rusk 
in 1935. 
 
Evidently the Rusk marriage did not last very long. Later in 1935, the June Street house was 
sold, and by 1940 Mr. and Mrs. Rusk were no longer living together.  At some point thereafter, 
known once again as Marvel Chessman, she moved to New York City where she died at the age 
of 90 on April 20, 1977.  She was interred at Forest Lawn in Glendale.  Dr. Chessman had 
passed away on January 18, 1971 at the age of 93 and was interred in Helena.  Biographical 
materials on Dr. and Mrs. Chessman and Mr. Rusk are attached on pages 11 through 13.   
 
Other Building Permits:  A permit was issued in October 1957 for a 14-by-32-foot addition to a 
lanai. The owner was to act as his own contractor for this job, valued at $1,200.  
 
In June 1965, permission was given to build a 684-square-foot gunite swimming pool at a cost of 
$4,200.  R. B. Perry & Associates was the contractor.   
 
A new 4-by-16-foot passageway was to be built and an existing patio porch converted into a 
family room, according to a permit issued in January 1968.  The cost was estimated at $7,500.  
The H & P Construction Company was the contractor.   
 
In May 1971, an existing bathroom was to be remodeled for $1,200.  No structural changes were 
to be made.  H & P Construction was again the contractor.   
 
A new air-conditioning system was installed in July 1972. 
 
H & P Construction was called back in June 1973 to remodel another existing bathroom at a cost 
of  $1,800.   
 
Copies of these permits are attached on pages 19 through 26.   
 
(Note: Permits for very minor alterations, such as water heater replacement, are not included.  
Also not included are permits missing from the file or whose microfilmed or digital copies are 
indecipherable and not otherwise recorded or described in Assessor’s records.)    
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Assessor’s Records:  The Los Angeles County Assessor first visited the property on October 22, 
1928 and recorded a two-story residence with a concrete foundation, stucco walls, a hipped and 
gabled tile roof, and plaster and tile trim.  Heat was provided by two fireplaces and an 
electrically-controlled gas furnace with ten openings.  There were eighteen (later upgraded to 
nineteen) “good”-quality plumbing fixtures.  Lighting fixtures were rated “special.”  Interior 
finishes consisted of plaster, Sanitas wall coverings, and plain woodwork.  The house had a total 
of nine hardwood floors. 
 
The Assessor estimated the square footage at 4,654.  On the first floor were an entry hall with a 
tile floor, four living rooms (one was probably a dining room), two bedrooms, one bathroom, a 
pass pantry, a kitchen, and a breakfast room.  The second floor contained three bedrooms and 
three bathrooms, one with a walk-in tiled shower. There was also a plastered basement that 
measured approximately sixteen by twenty feet.  The attached garage, measuring approximately 
twenty by thirty feet, had a cement floor, stucco walls, a tiled gabled roof, and a plastered 
interior.    
 
The Assessor added an 18-by-38-foot swimming pool in 1965.  It included a filter and a heater.   
 
The Assessor later recorded a 474-square-foot L-shaped addition to the side of the house.  It had 
a shed-like tile roof and steel sash.  The interior contained tongue-in-groove detailing, exposed 
rafters, one wall paneled in ash, an 18-foot sliding glass door, a parquet floor, and a bar sink.   
 
The Los Angeles County Assessor currently estimates the square footage of the house at 5,128 
with five bedrooms and four bathrooms.   
 
Copies of the Assessor’s building records are attached on pages 27 through 30. 
 
Other Owners and Residents:  In July 1935, Edmond Gage Soule, a horse-breeder from New 
York, became the owner.  In 1953, Gladys Soule was recorded as the executor-owner.   
 
Richard F. McWhorter gained title in April 1956.  Mr. McWhorter was a production manager at 
Universal Studios.  Loreine McWhorter joined her husband as co-owner in 1957. She was active 
in the National Charity League. 
 
In June 1960, Robert C. and Elizabeth F. Hill gained possession. 
 
Title was transferred to Karen L.Van Sant in June 1989. 
 
Robert F. Hill became a co-trustee owner in July 1991. 
 
Dante Di Loreto has been the owner since March 2013. 
 
Notes:  On July 28, 1935 the Los Angeles Times reported that Mrs. Marvel Rusk had sold the 
property to E. J. Soule.  A photograph accompanying the article (attached on page 14) shows 
how the original front door has been altered. At some unknown date, a French style canopy was 
placed over the entry porch, obscuring the original cast-stone quoining that had surrounded an 
arched opening. 
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The house was advertised for sale in the Times in November 1954, described as having “gunite 
construction” with a “lovely living room and library, spacious bedrooms, excellent-sized dining 
room, and nice garden.”  Another ad in June 1955 described the house as having the “finest 
construction.”  Copies of both ads can be found on page 15.   
 
Significance:  The City of Los Angeles has determined that the Chessman house is a contributor 
to the Hancock Park Historic Preservation Overlay Zone.  The City’s recording form is attached 
on page 16. 
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Sources: 
 City of Los Angeles, Building & Safety Department 
 Los Angeles County Assessor (Culver City district office and Los Angeles archives) 
 Los Angeles Public Library 
 
 Gebhard, David and Robert Winter.  An Architectural Guidebook to Los Angeles. 
  Salt Lake City, Gibbs-Smith, 2003. 
 McAlester, Virginia and Lee.  A Field Guide to American Houses.   
  New York, Knopf, 1984. 
 Who’s Who on the Pacific Coast, 1913. 
  
 City Directories:  1928- 
 
 Los Angeles Times:  January 27, 1935; July 28, 1935; November 14, 1954; June 13, 1955 
   
 Internet Resources, including California Index, California Death Index,  

Gale Biography Master Index, Ancestry.com, and Historic Los Angeles Times 
Database. 
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CHISHOLM, FORTINE & MEIKLE 
Designer/Builders 

 
The firm of Chisholm, Fortine & Meikle, although it flourished for a relatively short time, 
produced a number of fine residences in a variety of European styles in the Hancock Park and 
Windsor Square areas of Los Angeles.  The principal, Alexander David Chisholm, was born in 
Canada in 1884 and immigrated to the United States in 1919 with his wife Margaret Meikle 
Chisholm.  They settled first in Montana, but by the early 1920s had relocated to Los Angeles 
and were living at 4311 Beverly Boulevard.  From that address around 1923, Mr. Chisholm 
began operating a building contracting business, known as Chisholm & Meikle, a partnership 
between himself and his wife’s brother Evan (or Eban) Lorenzo Meikle.  Mr. Meikle (1890-
1959) was also a native of Canada who had emigrated from Nova Scotia around 1916.  He lived 
with Mr. and Mrs. Chisholm for a number of years, eventually moving with them to a new home 
at 580 North Arden Boulevard.   
 
Around 1925, Mr. Chisholm took on another partner, William Herschul Fortine (1888-1941) 
who had already found success in the oil industry and also lived in Hancock Park.  Chisholm, 
Fortine & Meikle became well-known for not just their construction activities but also for their 
ventures in real estate development.  At that time, the firm was located at 509 South Western 
Avenue.   
 
Perhaps due to the onset of the Great Depression, the partnership disbanded around 1930,  
Mr. Chisholm forming his own construction business known as the A. D. Chisholm Company, 
Inc., operating from 3981 West 6th Street.  Another brother-in-law, John J. Meikle, who had 
emigrated from Canada in 1924 and had his own house-painting business, served as vice-
president and Mrs. Chisholm was secretary of the firm.  They appear not to have been involved 
in real estate.  Mr. and Mrs. Chisholm later moved to North Hollywood where Mr.Chisholm died 
in 1946 at the age of 62 as a result of injuries sustained from being hit by a car as he walked 
across Magnolia Avenue.  A copy of Mr. Chisholm’s entry in the 1927/28 edition of Who’s Who 
in Los Angeles County is attached. 
 
Mr. Meikle also continued in the construction business until his own death at the age of 68.  He 
had lived on Chisholm Avenue in Van Nuys which had perhaps been named at the time his 
earlier firm had been involved in real estate development.  Mr. Fortine, a native of Illinois, 
evidently returned to the oil business in California and Mexico.  At the time of his death at the 
age of 53 he was living in Porterville where he was a well-known landowner.    
 
None of the principals of Chisholm, Fortine & Meikle appear to have had architectural training.  
The fact they took credit for the design of many of the residences they built indicates they 
probably had experienced architects on their staff.  They also on occasion used the architectural 
services of the well-known firms of Webber, Staunton & Spaulding and Clarence J. Smale.  At 
least eleven of Chisholm, Fortine & Meikle’s homes were featured in the Architectural Digest 
between 1925 and 1930.  Three documented addresses are: a residence at 543 Muirfield Road in 
the Italian style that the firm built on speculation; the White residence at 366 South June Street; 
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the Chessman residence at 464 North June Street; and the Ridgway residence at 355 Rimpau 
Boulevard. Both of the latter houses were done in the French Revival style. 
 
Sources: 
 
Los Angeles Times: January 18, 1931; March 23, 1941; March 20, 1946; August 31, 1959 
Who’s Who in Los Angeles County, 1927/28. 
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Los Angeles Times 

August 31, 1959; p. 23 
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Who’s Who on the Pacific Coast, 1913. 
p. 105 
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Frank and Marvel Chessman 
Passport Photo, 1921 

  



13 
 

 
 

 

 

Los Angeles Times 
January 27, 1935; p. B6 
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Los Angeles Times 
July 28, 1935; p. 9 
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Los Angeles Times 
November 14, 1954; p. J17 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Los Angeles Times 
June 13, 1955; p. A22
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